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Philip Mullenthaler's Royal Masterpiece 

Shown seated by his fireplace in his 
home at 138 Newark Avenue around 
1936, ornamental plasterer Philip 
Mullenthaler is justly proud of the fruits 
of his career that began in the 1890's 
and ended with the advent of "Art 
Moderne" as exemplified by the 1933 
Radio City Music Hall. Before that 

The Final Curtain Call 
The Right Side Of The Royal 
Theatre Proscenium Arch 

The above photograph was taken by 
Ina Campbell when a committee from 
the HSOB was permitted to visit the 
town-owned Royal Theatre before its 
demolition. Some of the ornate plaster-
work, which still survived despite water 
damage from leaks in the roof, is shown 
above. As far as is known, most or all of 
the above was destroyed during the raz­
ing of the building. 

fateful year, most 
motion picture houses 
were designed to be 
plaster replicas of the 
Doges Palace, Paris 
Opera House, and the 
Chapel at Versailles, all 
rolled into one. Inside 
the framework of a 
modern brick and steel 
shell, craftsmen would 
assemble a melange of 
various architectural 
styles, the more fantas­
tic the better. No 
attempt was made to 
copy an authentic 
architectural style. 
Those who would have 
attempted such an aca­
demic approach would 
have been laughed out 
of town. Mix and 
match were the order 
of the day and, in the 
case of Stein's Royal, 
the umbrella descrip­
tion of "Old Italian 
Renaissance" covered 

everything and satisfied everybody. 
The theatre was build in 1925-26 on 

the site of the Collyer 
and Dodd carriage 
works, both of which 
were beginning to feel 
the pinch of the auto­
mobile. The completed 
building opened 
February 27, 1926 with 
a program of motion 
pictures and Vaudeville. 
The theatre covered 
almost an acre of 
ground, most of it on 
Farrand Street -
Bloomfield Avenue 
frontage was too valu­
able to waste on the 
gigantic building. The 
stage doors and scenery 
docks opened onto 
Farrand Street and, for a few short 
years, live shows graced the new stage. 
There was an orchestra pit, green room 
under the stage, dressing rooms, and a 
$40,000 Wurlitzer Hope-Jones Organ. 
For many years after the advent of 
sound films, the console of the organ, 
then silenced, remained in the center of 
the orchestra pit, its red brocade cover­
ing gradually splitting and exposing 
rows of gleaming keys and stop knobs. 
As far as is known, it was never played 
after 1930. 
Another tragic loss was the gigantic 

crystal chandelier, which loomed over 
our heads with the brilliance of a thou­
sand suns. During World War Two, it 
was the "patriotic" thing to donate large 
metal objects to the scrap drive. Many 
irreplaceable artifacts were destroyed in 
this way. The management of the Royal 
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Fred T. Camp Memorial Given 
To Christ Episcopal Church 
A memorial to architect Fred T. Camp and his wife, 

Clara Hansen Camp of Saratoga, New York has been 
given to Christ Episcopal Church, Bloomfield/Glen 
Ridge by Frederick Branch of Bloomfield and Wayne 
T. Bell of Ocean Grove, New Jersey. Mr. and Mrs. 
Camp will be commemorated by a Station of the 
Cross: "Simon of Cyrene Carries The Cross For 
Jesus," part of a complete set of the Stations of the 
Cross which has been commissioned by the church for 
use during Holy Week. 
Fred T. Camp was a resident of Bloomfield from 

about 1880 until his death in 1905. He was an archi­
tect with an office on Broadway in New York City, but 
preferred to live in the rural environment of a New 
Jersey small town, commuting to and from the city via 
the Erie Railroad. He designed several "Queen Anne" 
style homes for Bloomfield citizens, including one for 
himself and his family, which still stands on Broad 
Street. Some other of his commissions were in New 
York City, but he is best known for the Great 
Methodist Auditorium in Ocean Grove, New Jersey. 
This remarkable building, which seats 6,000 people, 
was completed in 1894. 
Camp was a member of Christ Church while it was 

still located on its original site on Liberty Street, and 
supervised several improvements and additions to that 
building. When the frame structure burned in 
February of 1893, property was purchased at the pres­
ent location at the corner of Bloomfield and Park 

The former residence of Fred T. Camp on Broad 
Street. 

Avenues in Glen Ridge. Although Camp may have 
submitted plans for the new building, the commission 
was awarded to Halsey M. Wood.* Regardless, he 
rented a family pew in the new building and remained 
a member of the church. 
Fred T. Camp died in 1905 and was buried in the 

family plot in Bloomfield Cemetery. His wife joined 
him there almost 50 years later. 
Wayne T. Bell is the resident historian author of the 

Arcadia Book of historic photographs of Ocean 
Grove. He is actively researching Camp's career and 
will publish this when it is completed. Frederick 
Branch is the editor of this newsletter and a co-author 
(with Jean Kuras and Mark Sceurman) of the Arcadia 
Book of historic photographs of Bloomfield. 

* Since both buildings were constructed during the 
same year (1894), Camp may have been too busy to 
submit plans for Christ Church. 


